The Cambodian Journal of Nephrology

Meeting Issue

The Seventh Annual Conference of Cambodian Association of Nephrology 2024 Lim Vadhana, Congress President



ISSN 2518-0381



សឆ្លិចាតសមាគមគ្រូពេន្យតម្រខលោមគម្ពុជា ຽຍອຳຄູາເພື່ສຂຶ່ວ

7th Annual Conference of Cambodian Association of Nephrology

> 14th, September 2024 Sokha Hotel Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Innovation in Kidney Care in Cambodia



ELISIO[®] Series

POLYNEPHRON[®] inside Synthetic Dialyzer for highly convective therapies STATUS OF THE PARTY OF THE PART

SOLACEA[®] Series

NIPRO CORPORATION

3-26. Senriokashinmachi. Settsu. Osaka. 566-8510. Japan

ATA[®] membrane inside Semi-Synthetic Dialyzer for highly convective therapies

SOLACEA THE MODILITY COMMENTS



The Cambodian Journal of Nephrology

CONTENTS

Welcome Letter

- Welcome Message to Attendees of "The Seventh Annual Conference of the 04 Cambodian Association of Nephrology 2024" Lim Vadhana
- **Exective Members of Cambodian Association of Nephrology** 05
- The Seventh Annual Conference of Cambodian Association of Nephrology 06 Innovation in Kidney Care in Cambodia Program

Abstracts

- Dietary therapy tailored to dialysis treatment 08 Yukie Kitajima
- Understanding and Managing IgA Nephropathy 09 Liew Seng Teck Adrian
- **Contrast Induced Nephropathy : Current Practice** 10 HOV Chomroeun
- Practical and Cost-Effective Applications of the Furosemide Stress Test 10 in AKI Management LON Virithy
- 11 The Management of Drug-Induced Acute Tubular Necrosis SENG Raksmey
- 12Effect of Dialysis Operating Conditions on Solute Removal Ryoichi Sakiyama
- 13 Management of CKD-MBD in the aim of organ protection Hitoshi Minakuchi

Review article

- Nutritional advantage of pre-dilution on-line hemodiafiltration 14 for end stage renal patients. Motoko Kato, Shunichiro Urabe, Akira Kato, Shohei Matsuzawa, Momoko Hukazawa, Kamol Svay, Sovandy Chan, Yukie Kitajima, Kenichi Kokubo, Toru Hyodo
- A simple diabetes diet instruction book for Cambodian citizens [1]: 19 How to do Basic Carbohydrate Counting: Easy Diabetic Dietary Therapy Phon Elin, Tam Nov, Sopheaktra Tan, Sam Oudum Kim, So Sokchea, Keng Yi, Thim Pich Thida, Yim Sovannbophea, Kamol Svay, Sovandy Chan, Satomi Haga, Toru Hyodo, Yukie Kitajima

Author Guidelines

28 **Author Guidelines**

Remark by Prof. Lim Vadhana

President of the Cambodian Association of Nephrology. At the Seventh Annual Conference of the Cambodian Association of Nephrology 14th, September 2024, Phnom Penh, Cambodia



Greetings, highly respected professors, doctors, colleagues, students, ladies and gentlemen,

The incidence of kidney diseases has significantly increased over the past several years. This rise is a major concern for our society because, without proper care and treatment, the patients may progress to end-stage kidney disease, which requires advanced treatments such as hemodialysis or even renal transplantation. These conditions not only present daily challenges, including financial problems, but also place a burden on families and society as a whole. In response, our doctors, particularly nephrologists, are continuously seeking effective solutions to address this issue, which is supported by the guidance and policies of our government and Ministry of Health, as well as the substantial assistance and collaboration from our partner, Japan.

At today's conference, we will hear from international doctors from Japan and Singapore in the first and second sessions, respectively, followed by presentations from our local doctors in the third session. This year's conference is particularly special as we are introducing our new generation of nephrologists as speakers. Moreover, the presentations will cover a wide range of topics, including hemodialysis, chronic kidney failure, acute kidney injury, glomerulonephritis, as well as many other interesting topics. The main purpose is to raise awareness among the public and medical professionals about the prevention, diagnosis, and management of kidney diseases in order to enhance the well-being of the Cambodian people.

I strongly hope this occasion will be a valuable opportunity for all of us, the participants, to expand our knowledge in nephrology by discussing and sharing information and updates related to kidney diseases. This conference will also benefit our young nephrologists, helping them to further develop their expertise in the field. By doing so, we can improve our ability to provide better care and treatment for our patients.

Last but not least, I want to express my sincere gratitude for your precious participation. I wish you all the very best and am honored to announce the opening of the 7th Annual Conference of the Cambodian Association of Nephrology

President



Prof. LIM Vadhana M.D.

- Chef of CHEA SIM Hemodialysis center, Calmette Hospital
- Lecturer of Nephrology at University of Health
- Sciences

Honorable President

Prof. KHOUN Pichith M.D.



- Advisor for Ministry of Health Technical advisor for medicine, Department "B" Calmette hospital
- Former President of Cambodian Society of Medicine

Vice President



Prof. SVAY Kamol M.D., M.P.H., and T.M. Lecturer at Health Science Institute of Royal Cambodian Armed Force (RCAF) Chairman of Foreign Language Depart Health Science Insititute of RCAF Technical Health Member of National Council of Khmer Language of Royal Academy of Cambodia

Vice President



Ass. Prof. CHAN Sovandy M.D. Chief of Nephrology and Hemodialysis center of



International University

Executive Member



PHO Sokhom M.D. General Practitioner at Hemodialysis Department in PREAH KETMEALEA Hospital

Executive Member



Nephrologist at Calmette Hospital (Medicine A Department and CHEA SIM Hemodialysis center)

Executive Member

RITH Sovannara M.D. Nephrologist, Chief of Department of Nephrology at Khmer Soviet Hospital Lecturer of Nephrology at University of Health Sciences

Executive Member

SIN Bochhavan M.D. Nephrologist at Calmette Hospital (Medicine A4-A6 Department and CHEA SIM Hemodialysis Center



Honorable President



Prof.TORU Hyodo M.D., Ph.D.

Japanese Society for dialysis Therapy Human Resource Development Program Committee for Dialysis Specialist in Developing Country, Tokyo, Japan

Vice President



CHY Tith M.D.

Chef of Hemodialysis Department, PREAH KETMEA LEA Hospital

General Secretary



LIM Sochun M.D.

- Nephrologist at Calmette Hospital (Medicine A
- Department and CHEA SIM Hemodialysis center) Lecturer of Nephrology at University of Health
- Sciences

Sciences

Executive Member



NIV Rathvirak M.D.

- Nephrologist at Calmette Hospital (Medicine A Department and CHEA SIM Hemodialysis center) Lecturer of Nephrology at University of Health
- **Executive Member**



Ass. Prof. YOURS Sambo M.D., M.P.H. Lecturer at Health Science Institute of RCAF

Executive Member



KOEUT Chansophal M.D.

Nephrologist, Chief of Department of Nephrology at Cambodia China Friendship Kossamak Hospital

Executive Member

THIM Pichthida M.D., M.H.A.

- Pediatrician in the Nephrology Department at National Pediatric Hospital
- Director of Khmer Kids Pediatric Clinic

The Seventh Annual Conference of Cambodian Association of Nephrology Innovation in Kidney Care in Cambodia Program

Date : 14th, September 2024 Venu: Sokha Hotel Phnom Penh, Cambodia

OPENING SESSION

- 7:30-8:15 Arrival of Participants, Delegates and Speakers (Registration)
- 8:15-8:45 Coffee Break
- 8:45-8:50 National Anthem
- 8:50-9:00 Welcoming and Opening Speech by Prof. LIM Vadhana, President of CAN

Session 1 Moderator: Prof. SVAY Kamol

- 9 :00- 9 :20 Effect of Dialysis Operating Conditions on Solute Removal, by Prof. Ryoichi Sakiyama, Japan
- 9:20-9:40 Dietary therapy tailored to dialysis treatment, by Prof. Yukie Kitajima, Japan
- 9:40-9:50 KALBE Presentation
- 9:50-10:00 TELPHA Presentation
- 10:00-10:10 DKSH-Roche Presentation
- 10:10-10:20 SEARLE Presentation

SESSION 2 Moderator: Dr. SIN Bochhavan

- 10:20-10:40 Management of CKD-MBD in the aim of organ protection, by Prof. Hitoshi Minakuchi, Japan
- 10:40-11:00 Understanding and Managing IgA Nephropathy, by Dr. Liew Seng Teck Adrian, Singapore
- 11:00-11:10 DKSH-Abbott Presentation
- 11:10-11:20 METAMED Presentation
- 11:20-11:30 DYNAMIC-NIPRO Presentation
- 11:30-11:40 Absolute Presentation
- 11:40-12:30 Panel Discussion (Prof. LIM Vadhana, Dr. LIM Sochun, Dr. NIV Rathvirak, Dr. RITH Sovannara, Dr. SIN Bochhavan and Speakers)
- 12:30-13:30 Lunch

Session 3 Moderator: Dr. CHY Tith

13:30-13:50	Contrast Induced Nephropathy: C by Dr. HOV Chomroeun, Calmette Ho
13:50-14:10	The Management of Drug-induced by Dr. SENG Raksmey, Calmette Hos
14:10-14:30	Practical and Cost-Effective Appli AKI Management, by Dr. LON Virit
14:30-14:40	KALBE Presentation
14:40-14:50	TELPHA Presentation
14:50-15:00	Max Presentation
15:00-15:30	Panel Discussion (Prof. LIM Vadhar Dr. RITH Sovannara, Dr. SIN Bochha
15:30-16:00	Remise certificate, Closing, Lucky



Current Practice, ospital I Acute Renal tubular Necrosis, spital ications of the Furosemide Stress Test in

hy, KSFH

na, Dr. LIM Sochun, Dr. NIV Rathvirak, avan and Speakers)

draw

Abstracts

Dietary therapy tailored to dialysis treatment

Yukie Kitajima Ph.D., R.D. Dept. of Medical Nutrition, Tokyo Healthcare University

The goals of dietary therapy in chronic kidney disease are to slow the decline in renal function, prevent the onset and severity of hemodialysis complications, and prevent nutritional disorders. The basics of a dialysis diet are salt and water restriction, adequate energy and protein intake, and potassium and phosphorus restriction. Phosphorus management is difficult and can accelerate the onset of complications, especially when sufficient dialysis or administration of phosphorus-lowering drugs (phosphate binders) is not possible. The maximum intake of phosphorus is about 800 mg per day, and any more than that will accumulate in the bloodstream. One can absorb accumulated excess phosphorus by using a phosphate binder. However, this assumes that one's phosphorus intake is regulated by food consumption. The higher the variety and amount of food consumed, the higher the intake of phosphorus. The amount of phosphorus in grains is low, while beans and nuts are high in phosphorus. Phosphorus is also not abundant in fruits and vegetables. On the other hand, seafood, meat, dairy products, processed foods, and organs are high in phosphorus. Organic phosphorus is found in natural foods such as meat and vegetables as phosphoric acid bound to proteins. As a result, organic phosphorus is easily hydrolyzed and rapidly absorbed by the intestines. The absorption rate for phosphorus from meat is 50%, while the absorption rate for organic phosphorus found in fruits and vegetables is 30%. Unlike organic phosphorus, inorganic phosphorus



found in food additives is not bound to proteins and is therefore rapidly absorbed by the intestines. The absorption rate for inorganic phosphorus is close to 100%. We need to assess what foods our patients eat most often and then guide them in making the necessary dietary changes. Educating them on how to eat well and make good choices will help maintain their nutritional status and prevent the development of complications. However, if standard hemodialysis (3 times/week, 4 hours/treatment) is not possible, a low-protein diet therapy should be used.

Understanding and Managing IgA Nephropathy

Liew Seng Teck Adrian M.D. Mount Elizabeth Novena Specialist Centre, Singapore

IgA Nephropathy is the most common biopsyproven glomerulonephritis globally, often affecting young patients at the most economically productive period of their lives. While generally considered to be a slow progressive disease, the lifetime risk of end-stage kidney failure remains high. There is a well-recognized ethnicity driven risk of kidney failure with Asians generally accepted to have a more aggressive course. Incidence of the condition continues to be a gross underestimate globally and is determined by biopsy practice, access to health screening and health seeking behaviors. Currently, proteinuria remains the key biomarker that is used to identify individuals at high risk of disease progression with anti-proteinuria therapy, therefore, being long accepted as the standard of care in patients with IgA nephropathy. Recently, the addition of SGLT-2 inhibitors has been shown to improve renal survival outcomes in subgroup analysis of large-scale CKD clinical trials where a significant proportion of IgA nephropathy patients were included in the study population. Despite this, a high proportion of patients continue to develop kidney failure requiring kidney replacement therapy. Until recently, corticosteroids had been the only immunosuppression therapy recommended by guidelines for treatment of high risk individuals but unfortunately, were associated with a high prevalence of unwanted side-effects including life-threatening infections. The elucidation of the pathogenesis of IgA nephropathy over the last 2 decades has improved our understanding

Abstracts



of the course of the disease with increased levels of poorly galactosylated IgA1 (Gd-IgA1) being recognized as the key inciting event of the condition. Consequently, this has generated significant interests in testing novel therapeutic agents targeting different aspects of the pathogenic pathway in large number of well-conducted clinical trials. Endothelin A receptor antagonists are set to be included as an agent targeting the downstream cellular proliferation and fibrotic effects of the disease, with studies showing their effectiveness in further lowering proteinuria on top of RAS blockade. More importantly, new studies have started to demonstrate the effectiveness of novel drugs in ameliorating the upstream effect of Gd-IgA1. This can be achieved through a targetedrelease budesonide or agents blocking BAFF and/ or APRIL pathway, opening up an exciting area of a potential ability to control IgA nephropathy at its root cause. Finally, complement inhibitors affecting different pathways of the complement cascade is being investigated as a potential alternative to systemic corticosteroids in reducing the inflammatory damage and progression of CKD in this patient population. Indeed, the number of therapeutic options for the treatment of IgA nephropathy will increase substantially in the next few years and the clinical practice guidelines are likely to have to keep up with the pace of drugs being approved for this condition.

Contrast Induced Nephropathy : Current Practice

HOV Chomroeun M.D. Calmette Hospital

Radiological procedures utilizing intravenous iodinated contrast agents are being widely utilized for both therapeutic and diagnostic purposes. This has resulted in an increasing incidence of procedurerelated, contrast-induced nephropathy (CIN) when the kidney function altered severely in particularly. CIN is commonly defined as a decline in kidney function occurring in a narrow time window after administration of iodinated contrast agents. Although self-limiting in most cases, CIN carries a risk of more permanent renal insufficiency, dialysis, and death.



among at-risk patients after exposure of contrast agents. Therefore, it is important to identify patients who are at risk during early stages to implement preventative strategies to decrease the incidence of CIN.

Minimizing the amount of contrast administered and providing adequate hydration are the cornerstones of an effective preventative approach. This topic focuses on the basic concepts of CIN and summarizes the current understanding of its pathophysiology. In addition, it provides current practical recommendations with respect to CIN prevention and management.

It remains a common and serious complication

Practical and Cost-Effective Applications of the Furosemide Stress **Test in AKI Management**

LON Virithy M.D.

Khmer Soviet Friendship Hospital

Acute kidney injury is a serious condition that increases morbidity and mortality in hospitalized patients. progress to severe AKI requiring renal replacement therapy (RRT) is crucial for timely intervention and resource allocation. Despite advances in AKI management, there remains a critical need for reliable prognostic tools to guide clinical decision-making.

The Furosemide Stress Test (FST) has emerged as a pivotal diagnostic tool in the clinical assessment of acute kidney injury. The FST, involving a single dose of the safe and inexpensive diuretic furosemide and measuring urine output response, provides a dynamic assessment of kidney function. FST has significant benefits in predicting the need for renal replacement therapy, including hemodialysis, and in forecasting the recovery of kidney function in AKI patients on dialysis.



Key points include the FST's physiological basis, methodology, and interpretation. Evidence indicates that the FST is a reliable predictor of severe AKI progression and the need for hemodialysis. Additionally, the FST predicts kidney function recovery in dialysis patients. The test's costeffectiveness and safety enhance its clinical utility, often outperforming similar tests in AKI management.

In conclusion, the FST is a valuable addition to the diagnostic tools for AKI, aiding in early detection of patients at risk for hemodialysis and supporting predictions of kidney function recovery. Its dual utility enhances clinical decision-making, optimizes patient management, and improves outcomes, making it a cost-effective and safe approach for better patient care.

The Management of Drug-Induced Acute Tubular Necrosis

SENG Raksmey M.D. Calmette Hospital, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Drug-induced acute tubular necrosis (ATN) is a significant and potentially life-threatening condition characterized by the rapid deterioration of renal function due to toxic effects of medications on renal tubular cells and is the common cause of acute kidney injury (AKI). Antibiotics are one of the most common causes, especially Vancomycin and aminoglycoside.

The pathophysiology of drug-induced ATN involves direct toxicity to renal tubular epithelial cells, leading to cellular dysfunction, necrosis, and impaired tubular reabsorption. Risk factors such as preexisting renal impairment, advanced age, proteinuric diabetic or hypertensive, hypotension in liver and heart failure and high cumulative doses of nephrotoxic drugs increase susceptibility to ATN. Clinical presentation varies from asymptomatic renal dysfunction to severe acute kidney injury (AKI)

with oliguria, fluid overload, electrolyte disturbances, and uremia. Diagnosis is typically made based on clinical history, detailed medication history, laboratory findings (e.g., elevated serum Cheatinine, decreased urine output), and sometimes renal biopsy may be necessary in ambiguous cases to confirm the diagnosis.

Management strategies focus on discontinuing the offending drug promptly, supportive care

Abstracts



including fluid and hemodynamical management, electrolyte correction, and renal replacement therapy in severe cases. Prevention involves vigilant monitoring of renal function in patients at risk, dose adjustment in those with impaired renal clearance, and avoidance of nephrotoxic drug combinations whenever possible. In conclusion, drug-induced ATN represents

a critical clinical entity necessitating early recognition and intervention to mitigate renal injury and improve patient outcomes. Healthcare providers should remain vigilant in identifying potential nephrotoxic insults and managing them appropriately to minimize morbidity and mortality associated with drug-induced ATN.

KEYWORDS: Acute kidney injury (AKI), Druginduced Acute tubular necrosis (ATN), Antibiotic, Fluid management, Renal Replacement Therapy (RRT)

Effect of Dialysis Operating Conditions on Solute Removal

Ryoichi Sakiyama Ph.D. Department of Biomedical Engineering Osaka Institute of Technolog

Hemodialysis is one of the most popular treatments for renal failure patients in the world.

In hemodialysis, uremic toxins are removed from the blood to the dialysate side by diffusion based on the difference in solute concentration between the blood and dialysate sides. Clearance, the removal performance of the dialyzer, increases with increased blood and dialysate flow rates. Therefore, for the same duration time of treatment, the flow rate operating conditions will affect the blood of the patient's solute removal and thus the treatment effect. However, while increased blood flow increases clearance, it also increases fouling, and the adhesion of proteins to the membrane surface, and there is concern that fouling may degrade membrane performance.

The 62 micro globulin (62MG) (molecular weight 11800) is an important marker of the removal effect of dialysis. In a 2013 JSDT report, the risk of death

in patients with pre-dialysis 82MG concentrations of 25-30 mg/L, assuming 1.0, decreased to 0.907 at 20-25 mg/L, while it increased to 1.281 at 30-35 mg/L. Maintaining low blood 62MG levels in patients with renal failure by increasing 82MG clearance and providing treatment three times a week is important in terms of life prognosis.

This presentation will discuss the effect of improving clearance through operating conditions on solute removal.

Management of CKD-MBD in the aim of organ protection

Hitoshi Minakuchi M.D., Ph.D. National Defense Medical College of Japan

CKD-MBD (Chronic Kidney Disease-Mineral and Bone Disorder) is defined as systemic disease including renal osteodystrophy and vascular complications, and we have to control the concentrations of serum Ca, IP, iPTH in hemodialysis patients with appropriate methods. There are guidelines for CKD-MBD of hemodialysis patients, for example, KDIGO (Kidney Disease Improving Global Outcomes, World), KDOQI (Kidney Disease Outcomes Quality Initiative ,USA), JSDT (Japanese Society for Dialysis Therapy, Japan), and some differences exist among these guidelines. New evidence came over recently, episode study 2021 proved that more severe control of serum IP ameliorate the progression of coronary artery calcification, and Parathyroidectomy vs calclmimetics study 2022 revealed that severe control of serum Ca, IP, iPTH with parathyroidectomy improve the mortality of hemodialysis patients.

KISSEI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

Nutritional Business Center (Development and sales therapeutic foods)



Protein-Reduced Rice"Yumegohan 1/25"

Contributing to the health of people

around the world with our products

Abstracts



Enough dialysis dose, dietary restriction, and suitable prescription of phosphate binders are important to achieve severe control of serum IP. It is known that proton pump inhibitors which are frequently prescribed to hemodialysis patients decrease the effect of phosphor binders such as calcium carbonate and lanthanum carbonate. Adding on CKD-MBD control, the load of Mg, Fe, Zn and vitamin K or correction of pre-dialysis metabolic acidosis might be effective to avoid artery calcification. We have to think about osteoporosis among hemodialysis patients to reduce bone fracture, but there are few evidences for the osteoporosis among hemodialysis patinents.





Protein-Reduced Rice"Yumegohan 1/35"

KISSEI PHARMACEUTECAL CO..LTD. **Nutritional Business Center**

9637-6 Kataoka, Shiojiri-shi, 399-0711, Nagano, Japan Phone: +81(0)263-54-5010 E-mail: health@pharm.kissei.co.jp URL: https://healthcareinfo.kissei.co.jp/ (Japanese language only)

Nutritional advantage of pre-dilution on-line hemodiafiltration for end stage renal patients

Motoko Kato^{1,2}, Shunichiro Urabe^{1,3}, Akira Kato^{1,2}, Shohei Matsuzawa², Momoko Hukazawa², Kamol Svay⁴,

Sovandy Chan^{4, 5}, Yukie Kitajima^{1, 5, 6}, Kenichi Kokubo^{1, 5, 7}, Toru Hyodo^{1, 4, 5}

1: Ubiquitous Blood Purification International, Yokohama, Japan

- 2: Eijin Clinic, Hiratsuka, Japan
- 3: Juntendo University Faculty of Medical Science, Urayasu, Japan
- 4: Cambodian Association of Nephrology, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
- 5: International University, School of Medicine, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
- 6: Department of Medical Nutrition, Tokyo Healthcare University, Tokyo, Japan 7: Kitasato University School of Allied Health Sciences, Sagamihara, Japan

Key words

Pre-dilution on-line hemodiafiltration, Hemodialysis, Amino acid, Nutrition, Sarcopenia, Frailty

Abbreviations

afiltration	HDF : hemodiafiltration
CKD : chronic kidney disease	PEW : protein-energy wasting
TAAs : total amino acids	EAAs : essential amino acids
CS : clear space	$Cpre: pre-dialysis\ concentration$
Kt/V : K: clearance, t: time, V: vol	ume
Post O-HDF : post-dilution on-line	e HDF
	afiltration CKD : chronic kidney disease TAAs : total amino acids CS : clear space Kt/V : K: clearance, t: time, V: volu Post O-HDF : post-dilution on-line

Corresponding authors

Motoko Kato, CE, Shunichiro Urabe, CE, PhD, Toru Hyodo, MD, PhD Correspondance: thyodomd@gmail.com

Introduction

In Japan, pre-dilution on-line hemodiafiltration (Pre O-HDF) is known to yield better overall survival than hemodialysis (HD). In particular, Pre O-HDF with a high substitution volume (≥40.0 L/session) has been shown to yield better all-cause and cardiovascular survival than Pre O-HDF with a low substitution volume (<40.0 L/ session) or HD [1].

It is well established that patients on HD become malnourished and have an altered catabolic rate [2-4], and malnutrition has been shown to be associated with reduced quality of life and increased mortality among patients on HD [5, 6]. The multiple nutritional and catabolic alterations that occur in chronic kidney disease (CKD) was termed "protein-energy wasting (PEW)" by the International Society of Renal Nutrition and Metabolism [7]. PEW is the result of multiple mechanisms inherent to CKD, including undernutrition, systemic inflammation, comorbidities, hormonal derangements, the dialysis procedure, and other consequences of uremic toxicity [7].

Several studies have demonstrated that amino acid and protein losses during the dialysis session combined with low nutrient intake result in a lack of nutrients for muscle synthesis [8-11], indicating that dialysis treatment itself affects the protein and energy homeostasis of patients. Moreover, a substantial increase in net skeletal muscle protein catabolism occurs during dialysis treatment [12,13] and the undesirable effects of which persisted for at least 2 hours after the completion of HD [12].

There are two possible approaches to address this issue in blood purification therapy. The first is to minimize loss





of beneficial substances such as albumin and amino acids through dialysis. The second approach is to administer an intravenous amino acid solution for patients with renal failure to HD patients with poor nutritional status during dialysis. This method has long been used in conventional HD in Japan.

Amino acid leakage in HD and Pre O-HDF at equal Kt/V for urea

We investigated differences in amino acid losses between HD and Pre O-HDF with equal Kt/V for urea to determine which modality is gentler, less invasive, more biocompatible, and ensures better nutrition [14]. Patients on Pre O-HDF lost significantly less glutamine and arginine (p<0.01 and P = 0.032) and significantly less nonessential amino acids (NEAAs) than patients on HD (P = 0.013). They also showed significantly lower their clear spaces of total amino acids (TAAs), NEAAs, essential amino acids (EAAs), and branched-chain amino acids (BCAAs) than patients on HD (TAA: p = 0.019, NEAA: p = 0.018, EAA: p = 0.024, BCAA: p = 0.042) [Fig.1]. Yamashita reported that loss of solutes with different pre-dialysis concentrations is better to be calculated as a ratio of the two and compared because the loss of solutes and pre-dialysis concentration are directly proportional [15]. Clear space (CS) denotes the volume at which the concentration of the solute of interest becomes zero. CS was calculated using the following equation.

CS = m/Cpre

Here, Cpre is the pre-dialysis concentration of amino acids and m is milligram. When an amino acid has a large clear space, it means that a large proportion of that amino acid is removed relative to its blood concentration, and that a large volume of amino acids flows from extravascular pools into

Figure 1: Amino acid loss and their clear spaces of patients on on-line HDF and HD







blood vessels. The amino acid with the greatest CS in patients on either dialysis modality in this study was aspartic acid, followed by glutamic acid [Fig.2].

It can be said that because a smaller loss of amino acids was observed with Pre O-HDF when Kt/V for urea was equal, the amino acids volume that flowed into the blood from muscles and other amino acid pools was lower. This suggests that the protein catabolic rate is lower with Pre O-HDF.

Significance of amino acid leakage in the high-volume Pre O-HDF

In our hospital, hemodiafilters, through which albumin leakage is slight, are used in elderly HD patients or those with malnutrition. In addition, high-volume Pre O-HDF is performed to reduce the diffusion efficiency of micromolecular substances. However, the degree of amino acid (AA) (micromolecular substance) leakage remains to be clarified. In this study, we compared AA leakage among high-volume Pre O-HDF, HD, and post-dilution on-line HDF (Post O-HDF).

AA leakages after high-volume Pre O-HDF were significantly lower than HD and Post O-HDF. The CSs after high-volume Pre O-HDF were significantly lower than HD and Post O-HDF [Fig.3]

High-volume Pre O-HDF reduces AA leakage in comparison with HD and Post O-HDF. This blood purification method may be the most advantageous in preventing sarcopenia and frailty from the viewpoint of nutrition and dietetics.

Figure 3: Total amino acids loss and their clear spaces in high-volume Pre O-HDF, HD and Post O-HDF



High-volume Pre O-HDF showed significantly the lower total amino acid losses and their clear spaces than HD and Post O-HDF.

Summary and Conclusions

When the body experiences trauma from an invasive procedure, it increases metabolism in an attempt to repair damaged tissues [16]. The body cannot meet this increased energy demand with sugar alone, so it breaks down muscle protein and uses amino acids such as glutamine and alanine, which are then released into the bloodstream to provide energy and repair damaged tissue. Because HD is an invasive procedure, it can be presumed that not only does HD directly leads to the loss of amino acids, but also that the body reacts to the trauma of bioincompatible extracorporeal circulation by increasing energy metabolism and catabolic rate. Low-molecular-weight amino acids are subsequently lost through HD and HDF, which remove substances through diffusion and convection. In fact, studies have shown that 4–12 g of amino acids are removed in a single dialysis session [17-20]. However, an increase in the protein catabolic rate and protein breakdown may result in excessive removal of amino acids. A gentler, less invasive, and more biocompatible dialysis technique would theoretically reduce amino acid losses. In elderly patients, the muscle protein synthetic response to protein ingestion is reduced. [21] Furthermore, the plasma AA leaks during dialytic therapy by diffusion and convection. The decomposition of the skeletal muscle may progress in order to replenish a lack of the pooled plasma AAs. [22] Considering these negative aspects of dialysis therapy, the treatment conditions for reducing AA leakage are required to prevent sarcopenia and frailty, which have recently been emphasized, especially in elderly patients receiving dialysis.

Review article

References

- 1. Kikuchi K, Hamano T, Wada A, Nakai S, Masakane I. Predilution online hemodiafiltration is associated with improved survival compared with hemodialysis. Kidney Int 2019; 95: 929-938
- 2. kizler TA, Hakim RM. Nutrition in end-stage renal disease. Kidney Int 1996; 50: 343-357
- 3. Kopple JD, Greene T, Chumlea WC, Hollinger D, Maroni BJ, Merrill D, et al. Relationship between nutritional status and the glomerular filtration rate: results from the MDRD study. Kidney Int 2000; 57: 1688-1703
- 4. Fouque D, Kalantar-Zadeh K, Kopple J, Cano N, Chauveau P, Cuppari L, et al. A proposed nomenclature and diagnostic criteria for protein-energy wasting in acute and chronic kidney disease. Kidney Int 2008; 73: 391-398
- 5. Acchiardo SR, Moore LW, Latour PA. Malnutrition as the main factor in morbidity and mortality of hemodialysis patients. Kidney Int Suppl 1983; 16: S199-203
- 6. P, Barany P, Chung SH, Lindholm B, Heimbürger O. A comparative analysis of nutritional parameters as predictors of outcome in male and female ESRD patients. Nephrol Dial Transplant 2002; 17: 1266-1274
- Carrero JJ, Stenvinkel P, Cuppari L, Ikizler TA, Kalantar-Zadeh K, Kaysen G, et al. Etiology of the protein-energy wasting syndrome in chronic kidney disease: a consensus statement from the International Society of Renal Nutrition and Metabolism (ISRNM). J Ren Nutr 2013; 23: 77-90
- 8. Löfberg E, Essén P, McNurlan M, Wernerman J, Garlick P, Anderstam B, et al. Effect of hemodialysis on protein synthesis. Clin Nephrol 2000; 54: 284-294
- 9. Mokrzycki MH, Kaplan AA. Protein losses in continuous renal replacement therapies. J Am Soc Nephrol 1996; 7: 2259-2263
- 10. Davies SP, Reaveley DA, Brown EA, Kox WJ. Amino acid clearances and daily losses in patients with acute renal failure treated by continuous arteriovenous hemodialysis. Crit Care Med 1991; 19: 1510-1515
- 11. Schepky AG, Bensch KW, Schulz-Knappe P, Forssmann WG. Human hemofiltrate as a source of circulating bioactive peptides: determination of amino acids, peptides and proteins. Biomed Chromatogr 1994; 8: 90-94
- Ikizler TA, Pupim LB, Brouillette JR et al. Hemodialysis stimulates muscle and whole body protein loss and alters substrate oxidation. Am J Physiol Endocrinol Metab 2002; 282: e107-16
- 13. Raj DS, Zager P, Shah VO, Dominic EA, Adeniyi O, Blandon P, et al. Protein turnover and amino acid transport kinetics in endstage renal disease. Am J Physiol Endocrinol Metab 2004; 286: E136-43
- 14. Urabe S, et al. Amino acid losses are lower during pre-dilution on-line HDF than HD of the same Kt/V for urea. Journal of Artificial Organs.2020;23:342-347
- 15. Yamashita AC. The clear space index. Contrib Nephrol 2017; 189: 197-203.
- 16. Kotani G, Usami M, Kasahara H, Saitoh Y. The relationship of IL-6 to hormonal mediators, fuel utilization, and systemic hypermetabolism after surgical trauma. Kobe J Med Sci 1996; 42: 187-205
- 17. Wolfson M, Jones MR, Kopple JD. Amino acid losses during hemodialysis with infusion of amino acids and glucose. Kidney Int 1982; 21: 500-506
- 18. Ikizler TA, Flakoll PJ, Parker RA, Hakim RM. Amino acid and albumin losses during hemodialysis. Kidney Int 1994; 46: 830-837
- 19. Navarro JF, Marcén R, Teruel JL, Martin del Río R, Gámez C, Mora C, et al. Effect of different membranes on amino-acid losses during haemodialysis. Nephrol Dial Transplant 1998; 13: 113-117
- 20. Navarro JF, Mora C, León C, Martín-Del Río R, Macía ML, Gallego E, et al. Amino acid losses during hemodialysis with polyacrylonitrile membranes: effect of intradialytic amino acid supplementation on plasma amino acid concentrations and nutritional variables in nondiabetic patients. Am J Clin Nutr 2000; 71: 765-773
- 21. Kobayashi H. Amino Acid Nutrition in the Prevention and Treatment of Sarcopenia. YAKUGAKU ZASSHI. 2018;138: 1277-1283.
- 22. Ikizler TA, Pupim LB, Brouillette JR et al. Hemodialysis stimulates muscle and whole body protein loss and alters substrate oxidation. Am J Physiol Endocrinol Metab 2002; 282: e107-16

Review article

A simple diabetes diet instruction book for Cambodian citizens [1]: How to do Basic Carbohydrate Counting: Easy Diabetic Dietary Therapy

Phon Elin^{1, 2}, Tam Nov^{1, 2}, Sopheaktra Tan^{1, 2}, Sam Oudum Kim^{1, 2}, So Sokchea^{1, 2}, Keng Yi¹, Thim Pich Thida^{1, 2}, Yim Sovannbophea^{1, 2}, Kamol Svay², Sovandy Chan^{1, 2}, Satomi Haga³, Toru Hyodo^{1, 2, 3}, Yukie Kitajima^{1, 3, 4}

1: International University, School of Medicine, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

2: Cambodian Association of Nephrology, Phnom Penh, Cambodia 3: Ubiquitous Blood Purification International, Yokohama, Japan

4: Department of Medical Nutrition, Tokyo Healthcare University, Tokyo, Japan

Key words Diabete Melites, Basic Carbohydrate Counting, Diet Therapy

Corresponding authors Phon Elin, MD and Toru Hyodo, MD, PhD

Correspondence thyodomd@gmail.com

1: What is the dietary component to become blood sugar?

Food is made up of three nutrients. These are carbohydrates, proteins and fats. Of these, carbohydrates are the main source of blood glucose when eaten. Protein and fat do not turn into blood sugar. Strictly speaking, only a little goes into blood glucose. As shown in Figure 1, blood glucose rises more after a meal of rice than after a meal of steak and butter, which have more calories. In other words, it is not the calories that affect blood glucose after a meal, but how much carbohydrate is consumed [1, 2]. **Figure 2** summarizes the relationship between food type and postprandial blood glucose in a simple table. Only foods that contain carbohydrates result in blood glucose. Staple foods are mainly carbohydrates. They are rice, bread and noodles. In Cambodia it would be rice. Milk, vegetables, and fruits are not staple foods, but they do contain some carbohydrates that raise blood glucose after a meal.

2: What is the Basic Carbohydrate Counting?

According to the fact that only carbohydrate raises blood glucose, not fat, not protein, the basic carbohydrate counting (indication for all diabetic patients) is to teach the diabetic patients that only carbohydrate raises blood glucose, not fat, not protein, and to teach the diabetic patients that the patient should eat the same amount of carbohydrate at every meal.

Figure 3 shows an image of the basic carbohydrate counting. To make the amount of carbohydrates easier to understand, the amount of carbohydrates is represented by 1 cup of rice. The basic carbohydrate counting keeps postprandial blood glucose constant by keeping the amount of rice, or carbohydrate, in the staple food constant. In the diabetic patients, before the introduction of basic carbohydrate counting, the amount of rice eaten at each meal is not constant, so that, for example, the green dotted line blood glucose level is also high after dinner. Thus, even the same amount of rice per day will result in hyperglycemia. After the introduction of basic carbohydrate counting, the amount of rice eaten at each meal is constant, so the postprandial blood glucose changes at each meal also show an even pattern for the three meals, as shown by the blue line. This pattern shows a slight increase in blood glucose after each meal. This is the pattern of blood glucose changes in a healthy person without

diabetes. So the basic carbohydrate counting is to keep the amount of carbohydrate at each meal constant. Figure 4 shows the approximate amount of rice. One handful is about 200 grams of rice. The amount of rice per serving for a diabetic adult is about 200 g. The amount of carbohydrates is about 75 g. Figure 5 shows an example of the basic carbohydrate counting in the Cambodian diet. The staple meal of rice is 200 g per meal, consumed equally in each of the three meals.

3: Basic Carbohydrate Counting Tips

Most of the carbohydrates in the diet come from staple foods. In other words, we only need to focus on the amount of rice, noodles, and bread. Main dishes such as entrees and side dishes contain little or no carbohydrates. By simply keeping track of the carbohydrates in rice, noodles, and bread, and making sure that the same amount of carbohydrates is consumed at all three meals, the diabetic patients will have similar daily blood glucose patterns as healthy people. Carbohydrate is almost from staple food. It is roughly enough to calculate carbohydrate of staple food.

4: Foods with and without carbohydrates

Figure items 6 through 13 are foods that contain carbohydrates. Figures 14-17 are side dishes that contain a little carbohydrate but not too much, called main and side dishes. Items 18-20 are vegetables that contain little or no carbohydrates. Number 21 is tea, water, and artificial sweeteners, which contain no carbohydrates.

Figures 22 through 28 show specific examples of food items that are primarily staple foods, their weights, and carbohydrate content. The 200 g of rice in Figure 22, which shows 10 g of carbohydrates as 1 carbo, contains 74 g of carbohydrates, which means it contains about 7.5 carbo. Figure 23 shows that a cup of noodles contains 36.4 g of carbohydrates, which is about 3.5 carbo. Figure 24 is a 5.5 carbc food, Figure 25 is a 6 carbo food, Figure 26 is a 7 carbo food, and Figure 27 is a 3.0 carbo and 1.5 carbo food. The potato in Figure 26 would be a 2.5 carbo food.

ស្យ៊ាវភៅណែនាំអំពីរបបអាហារសម្រាប់អ្នកជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែម សាមញ្ហសម្រាប់ប្រជាជនខ្មែរ 🦻 ៖ របៀបធ្វើការគណនា កាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្ឋាន ៖ ការព្យាបាលដោយរបបអាហារសម្រាប់អ្នកដំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែម ដែលងាយស្រួល

ផុន អេលីន ^{1,0}, នៅ តាំ ^{1,0}, តាន់ សុភ័ក្រ្ត ^{1,}២, គឹម សាំអូឌុំ ^{1,}២, សូ សុខជា ^{1,0}, គង់ យី ¹, ធីម ពិជ ធីតា ^{1,0}, យិម សុវណ្ណបុញ្ ^{1,0}, សាយ កាមល់ ២, ចាន់ សុវណ្ឌ៍ ១.២, សាតូមី ហាហា្ក ៣, តូរូ ហ៊ីយ៉ូដូ ១២.៣, យូគី គីតាជីម៉ា ១.៣.៤

9: សាកលវិទ្យាល័យអន្តរជាតិ មហាវិទ្យាល័យវេជ្ជសាស្ត្រ ភ្នំពេញ កម្ពុជា

២: សមាគមត៍ម្រងនោមកម្ពុជា ភ្នំពេញ កម្ពុជា

៣: អង្គការសំអាតឈាមអន្តរជាតិ យូកូហាម៉ាំ ជប៉ុន ៤: នាយកដានអាហារពេទ្យ៍ សាកលវិទ័្យល័យវេជ្ជសាស្ត្រតួក្យ តួក្យ ជប៉ុន

ពាក្យគន្លឹះ ជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែម ការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្ឋាន ការព្យាបាលដោយរបបអាហារ ទំនាក់ទំនងអ្នកនិពន្ធ ជជួបណ្ឌិត ផុន អេលីន និង ជជួបណ្ឌិត បណ្ឌិត ត្រូ ហ៊ីយ៉ូដូ

9. អ្វីទៅជាសមាសធាតុអាហារដែលកាយជាស្ករក្នុងឈាម?

អាហារមានសមាសធាតុចិញ្ចឹមបីប្រភេទ រួមមានកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ប្រូតេអ៊ីន និងខា្លញ់ ។ ក្នុងចំណោមនេះ កាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតជាប្រភពសំខាន់នៃជាតិស្តរក្នុង ឈាមនៅពេលញ៉ាំ ។ ប្រូតេអ៊ីន និងខាញ់មិនប្រែកា្លយទៅជាស្តរក្នុងឈាមទេ ។ តាមពិត មានតែបរិមាណតិចតួចប៉ុណ្ណេះដែលប្រែកា្លយទៅជាស្តរ ក្នុងឈាម ។ ដូចបានបង្ហាញក្នុងរូបភាពទី១ ជាតិស្តរក្នុងឈាមកើនឡើងច្រើនបនាប់ពីញាំបាយ ជាងបនាប់ពីញាំសាច់គោ និងប៊ឺ ដែលមានកាឡារី ច្រើន ។ និយាយដោយឡែក វាមិនមែនជាកាឡារីដែលប៉ះពាល់ដល់ជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាមបនា្ចប់ពីញ៉ាំអាហារនោះទេ ប៉ុន្តែជាបរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតដែលបាន បរិភោគ [១, ២] ។ រូបភាពទី២ បង្ហាញពីទំនាក់ទំនងរវាងប្រភេទអាហារ និងជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាមបនា្ចប់ពីញ៉ាំអាហារក្នុងតារាងសាមញ្ហមួយ។ មានតែ អាហារដែលមានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតប៉ុណ្ណោះដែលបណា្តលឱ្យមានជាតិស្ករកើនក្នុងឈាម ។ អាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃគឺជាប្រភេទអាហារសំបូរកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ។ វាមានដូចជាជាបាយ នំប៉័ង និងមី។ បើនៅកម្មជាអាហារដែលអាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃ (staple food) គឺជាបាយ។ ទឹកដោះគោ បន្លែ និងផ្លែឈើ មិនមែនជាអាហារអាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃ (staple food) នោះទេ ប៉ុន្តែវាមានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមួយចំនួនដែលបណាលឱ្យមានជាតិស្គរក្នុងឈាមបនាប់ពី ញ៉ាំអាហារដែរ ។

២. ការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដាន

យោងតាមការសិក្សាដែលបញ្ចក់ថា មានតែកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតប៉ុណ្ណេះដែលបង្កើនជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាម ហើយមិនមែនជាខា្ញញ់ ឬ ប្រូតេអ៊ីននោះទេ ការគណនា កាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្ឋាន (សម្រាប់អ្នកជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែមទាំងអស់) គឺដើម្បីបង្រៀនអ្នកជំងឺទាំងនេះថា មានតែកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតប៉ុណ្ណោះដែលបង្កើនជាតិស្តរក្នុង ឈាម មិនមែនជាខា្លញ់ ឬ ប្រូតេអ៊ីននោះទេ ហើយនិងត្រូវបង្រៀនអ្នកជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែមថា គួរតែញ៉ាំកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតក្នុងបរិមាណដូចគា្ននៅគ្រប់ពេល អាហារ ។

បង្ហាញពីរូបភាពនៃការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្បូន ។ ដើម្បីធ្វើឱ្យបរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតងាយយល់ បរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតត្រូវបាន រូបភាពទី៣ តំណាងដោយបាយមួយពែង ។ ការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្បូនរក្សាលំនឹងជាតិស្គរក្នុងឈាមបនាប់ពីញ៉ាំអាហារឱ្យស្ថិរភាពដោយរក្សាបរិមាណបាយ ប្ កាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ក្នុងអាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃឱ្យនៅថេរ ។ ចំពោះអ្នកជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែម មុនពេលណែនាំការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្ឋាន បរិមាណបាយដែល បានញ៉ាំនៅពេលអាហារនីមួយៗមិនថេរនោះទេ ដូចឧទាហរណ៍ កម្រិតជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាម បនាត់ពណ៍បៃតងព្រិលៗ ក៏ខ្ទស់បនា្លប់ពីអាហារពេលល្បច ផងដែរ ។ ដូច្នេះ ទោះបីជាបរិមាណអង្ករដូចគា្នក្នុងមួយថ្ងៃក៏បណា្តលឱ្យមានជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាមខ្ពស់ដែរ ។ បនា្ទប់ពីណែនាំការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូល ដ្បូន បរិមាណបាយដែលបានញ៉ាំនៅពេលអាហារនីមួយៗមានស្ថិរភាព ដូច្នេះការផា្លស់ប្តូរជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាមបនា្ងប់ពីញ៉ាំអាហារនីមួយៗក៏បងា្កញពីលំនាំ ស្មើៗគា្នសម្រាប់អាហារទាំងបីពេល ដូចបានបង្ហាញដោយបនា្នត់ពណ៌ខៀវ ។ លំនាំនេះបង្ហាញពីការកើនឡើងបន្តិចនៃជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាមបនា្ចប់ពីអាហារ នីមួយៗ ។ នេះគឺជាលំនាំនៃការផា្លស់ប្តូរជាតិស្តរក្នុងឈាមរបស់មនុស្សដែលមានសុខភាពលូដែលមិនមានជំងឺទឹកនោមផែ្មម ។ ដូច្នេះការគណនាកាបូ អ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដានគឺដើម្បីរក្សាបរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតនៅពេលអាហារនីមួយៗឱ្យស្ថិរភាព ។ រូបភាពទី៤ បងា្កញពីបរិមាណបាយប្រហាក់ប្រហែល ។ បាយ

មួយកណ្តប់ដៃមានទម្ងន់ប្រហែល ២០០ ក្រាម ។ បរិមាណបាយក្នុងមួយចំណែកសម្រាប់មនុស្សពេញវ័យដែលមានជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែមគឺប្រហែល ២០០ ក្រាម ។ បរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតគឺប្រហែល ៧៥ ក្រាម ។ រូបភាពទី៥ បង្ហាញពីឧទាហរណ៍នៃការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្បនក្នុងរបបអាហារខ្មែរ ។ អាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃគឺបាយដែលមានទម្ងន់ ២០០ ក្រាមក្នុងមួយពេល បរិភោគស្មើៗគា្ននៅគ្រប់អាហារទាំងបីពេល ។

៣. ការណែនាំស្តីពីការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមូលដ្ឋាន

កាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតភាគច្រើននៅក្នុងរបបអាហារមកពីអាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃ ។ និយាយដោយឡែក យើងត្រូវតែផ្តោកលើបរិមាណបាយ មី និងនំប៉័ង ប៉ុណ្ណេះ ។ មុខម្ហូបសំខាន់ៗ ដូចជាមុខម្ហូបចាប់ផ្តើម (សំរន់) និងមុខម្ហូបបន្ថែម (ល្បោយ) មានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតតិច ឬ គា្មន ។ ដោយគ្រាន់តែ តាមដានកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតក្នុងបាយ មី និងនំប៉័ង និងធានាថាបរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតដូចគា្នត្រូវបានបរិភោគនៅគ្រប់អាហារទាំងបីពេល អ្នកជំងឺទឹកនោមផ្អែម នឹងមានលំនាំជាតិស្ករក្នុងឈាមប្រចាំថ្ងៃដូចគា្ននឹងមនុស្សដែលមានសុខភាពល្អ ។ កាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតមកពីអាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃ (staple food) ស្ទើរតែ ទាំងអស់ ។ ដូចនេះ ការគណនាកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតនៃអាហារសំខាន់ប្រចាំថ្ងៃ (staple food) ប្រហែលជាល្អគ្រប់គ្រាន់ ។

៤. អាហារដែលមាន និងតា្មនកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត

រូបភាពទី ៦ ដល់ទី ១៣ គឺជាអាហារដែលមានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ។ រូបភាពទី ១៤ ដល់ទី ១៧ គឺជាមុខម្ហូបបន្ថែមដែលមានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតតិច ប៉ុន្តែ មិនច្រើនពេក ហៅថា មុខម្ហូបចម្បង និងមុខម្ហូបបន្ថែម(ល្បោយ) ។ រូបទី ១៤ ដល់ទី ២០ គឺបន្លែដែលមានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតតិច ឬ គា្មន ។ លេខ ២១ គឺតែ ទឹក និងសារធាតុផ្ទៃម (ស្ករ) សិប្បនិម្មិត ដែលគា្មនកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ។

រូបភាពទី ២២ ដល់ទី ២៤ បង្ហាញពីឧទាហរណ៍ជាក់លាក់នៃអាហារដែលជាអាហារសំខាន់ ទម្ងន់របស់វា និងបរិមាណកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ។ អង្ករ ២០០ ក្រាម នៅក្នុងរូបភាពទី ២២ ដែលបង្ហាញពី ១០ ក្រាមនៃកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាតជា ១ កាបូ មានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ៧៤ ក្រាម ដែលមានន័យថា វាមានប្រហែល ៧,៥ កាបូ ។ រូបភាពទី ២៣ បង្ហាញថា អង្ករមួយពែងមានផ្ទុកកាបូអ៊ីដ្រាត ៣៦,៤ ក្រាម ដែលមានប្រហែល ៣,៥ កាបូ ។ រូបភាពទី ២៤ គឺអាហារ ៥,៥ កាបូ រូបភាពទី ២៥ គឺអាហារ ៦ កាបូ រូបភាពទី ២៦ គឺអាហារ ៧ កាបូ និងរូបភាពទី ២៧ គឺអាហារ ៣,០ កាបូ និង ១,៥ កាបូ ។ ដំឡូង នៅក្នុងរូបភាពទី ២៦ នឹងជាអាហារ ២,៥ កាបូ ។



ឥន្ធិពលនៃការកេនធ្យើ១ខាតស្ករភូទឈាម ដោយសារកាមអ៊ីថ្រាត ប្រតេអ៊ីន និ១ខ្លាញ

	ក្រុមអាហារ	សារធាតុចិញ្ចឹម	ឥទូពលនេការ កើនទ្បើងជាតិ ស្ករក្នុងឈាម	តទុពលនេការកេន ទៀងជាតិស្ករក្នុង ឈាម
	អាហារសំខាន់ ប្រចាំថ្ងៃ (បាយ នំប៉័ង មី)	កាបូអ៊ីជ្រាត ប្រភេអ៊ីន (តិច)	ខ្ពស់ខ្លាំង	រហ័ស
	ផ្លែឈើ	កាបូអ៊ីជ្រាត	ខ្ពស់	រហ័ស
	ទឹកដោះគោ	កាប្វអ៊ីជ្រាត ប្រតេអ៊ីន (តិច) "ខ្លាញ់ (តិច)	ខ្ពស់	រហ័ស
1	បន្លែ	កាបូអ៊ីជ្រាត ប្រភេអ៊ីន (តិច)	តិច	រហ័ស
	សាច់	ប្រភេអ៊ីន ខ្លាញ់ (តិច)	18	18
បទី២	ខ្លាញ់	றற்	18	18



Review articleμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμμ</

























សាច់ប្រន្យាក់មេ្យ = អាចារកាមអ៊ីន្រាតនាម កំពឹសចៀន fried shrimp សាច់ជ្រ័កបំពង់ fried fish ប្រហិតបៀន fried fish cake

Review article

គៀវខ្ចប់

fried wan

បង្គាលីងខ្ទឹម fried shrimp w/ garlic

ផ្កាល្តៅបំពង ៖p fried numpkin f រូបទី១៦























Review article



References

- 1. Toru Hyodo, Yukie Kitajima, Noriko Mikami, et al: The lack of the knowledge about the postprandial blood glucose by the education using the single absolute tool for the diabetic dietary therapy in Japan. Arch Renal Dis Manag. 2015; 1: 1-2.
- 2. Kitajima Y,Mikami N, Hyodo T, Kawakami J. Carbohydrate counting: a simple method of dietary management forglycemic control in Japanese diabetic hemodialysis patients. Contribution Nephrology.2016;189

ឯកសារយោង

- 9: Toru Hyodo, Yukie Kitajima, Noriko Mikami, et al: The lack of the knowledge about the postprandial blood glucose by the education using the single absolute tool for the diabetic dietary therapy in Japan. Arch Renal Dis Manag. 10096; 9: 9-10.
- D: Kitajima Y,Mikami N, Hyodo T, Kawakami J. Carbohydrate counting: a simple method of dietary management forglycemic control in Japanese diabetic hemodialysis patients. Contribution Nephrology. 10092;968

©2024 The Authers Cambodian Journal of Nephrology

Author Guidelines

- 1. The Cambodian Journal of Nephrology (hereinafter referred to as "Journal") is an English/Cambodian/Japanese language journal published by Reiseikai Media (Cambodia) Co., Ltd ("Company"). The purpose of the Journal is to widely introduce medical achievements in the fields of basic and clinical medicine on nephrology and thereby to contribute to the development of medicine and human beings.
- 2. Authors are requested to understand and accept to the content of this author guideline (hereinafter referred to as "Guideline") before submitting manuscripts to the Journal. The Guideline may be revised from time to time at the sole discretion of the Company.
- 3. Copyrights of the submitted manuscripts will, in principle, remain with the authors, provided, however, that during the effective period of copyrights and throughout the world, the Company has the non-exclusive right to reproduce, distribute and transmit to the public, all or part of the copies of the manuscripts, as well as the non-exclusive right to translate, proofread or adapt them to the extent necessary to post in the Journal. Where the copyright of the submitted manuscript belongs to someone other than the person who has submitted to the Journal, the person who has submitted shall obtain a prior approval from the copyright owner for submitting the manuscript to the Journal according to the Guideline.
- 4. Copyrights in any work of translation, proofreading or any other adaptation conducted by the Company on the submitted manuscripts will belong to the Company. The authors may not, without a prior written consent of the Company, use such works in any medium other than the Journal, notwithstanding section 28 of the Japanese Copyrights Act and its counterpart provision of a law of the relevant countries.
- 5. Authors must not make any objection to the translation, proofreading or any other adaptation conducted by the Company to the submitted manuscripts.
- 6. Authors must warrant that the submitted manuscripts would not infringe any third party's copyrights, moral rights including rights in relation to privacy and defamation or any other rights. Clinical researches must have been performed according to the Declaration of Helsinki and ethical consideration must have been fully taken into. Experiments involving animals must have been conducted in the manner giving careful consideration to animal protection. Where the content of the submitted manuscripts involves interest of particular individuals or organizations/bodies, authors are requested to expressly write down such interest or possible conflict of interest in the text of the manuscripts.
- 7. Manuscripts acceptable to be submitted are not limited to those that are not yet submitted to or published in, the other journals or academic societies etc. If, however, authors intend to submit to the Journal, manuscripts that contain substantially the same part(s) of the content of those which are already submitted to or published in, other journals or academic societies etc., authors are requested to, including but not limited to, look up the author guidelines of the journals or members' rules of the academic societies etc.; make inquiries to the journals or academic societies etc. in ad-

vance where necessary; and obtain approvals for citation or reproduction, so as to avoid any violation of ethics as researchers. Authors are requested to state citations (name of author, name of book, year of publication, page number etc.) in the text of the manuscripts where suitable.

- 8. The Journal does not prohibit authors from submitting the same manuscripts to other journals. However, the authors must understand and accept that under the authors guideline of other journals, submission to the Journal of a manuscript might cause prohibition of the same manuscript from being submitted to other journals; and that in case where the authors are not allowed to submit a manuscript to other journals because the same manuscript has been submitted to the Journal, the Company will not owe any liability at all to the authors for posting the manuscript in the Journal.
- 9. Whether or not to post in the Journal the manuscripts submitted will be decided by the Editing Committee after the peer review by peers designated by the Editing Committee.
- 10. The manuscripts submitted to the Journal will not, in principle, be returned to the authors.
- 11. Proofreading by an author will be allowed only with the first proof, and the author must return the manuscript by the due date requested. The proofreading by an author will be allowed only as to corrections of omission of letters and typographers, and no additional writing to the manuscript in the proofreading is, in principle, permitted.
- 12. 1) Manuscripts to be submitted must be prepared using computer software. 2) Manuscripts must be in horizontal writing with appropriate spaces between the lines on A4 size papers.
- 13. Neither the Company nor authors whose manuscripts have been posted in the Journal will not be paid for the publication of them.
- 14. Manuscripts must be submitted to the following:

Reiseikai Media (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. #9GA, Street Keo Chenda, Village 3, Sangkat Chroy Chongva, Khan Chroy Chongva, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodiabodia E-mail: info@reiseikai-media.org

បទប្បញ្ញត្តិជាផ្លូវការនៃការចុះផ្សាយ

- 9. ទស្សនាវិដ្ដី The Cambodian Journal of Nephrology ត្រូវបានបោះពុម្ពផ្សាយជាភាសាខ្មែរ អង់គ្លេស និង ជប៉ុនដោយក្រុមហ៊ុន Reiseikai Media (Cambodia) Co.,Ltd. ក្នុងគោលបំណងរួមចំណែកក្នុង វិស័យវេជ្ សាស្រត្ត ក៏ដូចជាការអភិវឌ្ឍធនធានមនុស្សតាមរយៈការណែនាំពីមូលដានគ្រិះនៃជំងឺតម្រងនោម និង សមិទ្ធិផល វេជ្ជសាស្រ្តក្នុងវិស័យសុខាភិបាលអោយបានទូលំទូលលាយផងដែរ ។
- ២. អ្នកនិពន្ធ ត្រូវយល់ច្បាស់ និង ទទួលសា្តល់បទប្បញ្ញត្តិនៃការចុះផ្សាយនេះ ។ សូមចំណាំផងដែរថាបទប្បញ្ញត្តិនេះ អាចនឹងត្រូវបានធ្វើវិសោធនកម្មតាមការសំរេចចិត្តរបស់យើងខ្ញុំ ។
- ៣. រាល់សារណាទាំងអស់ ដែលបានចុះផ្សាយជាមួយយើងខ្ញុំត្រូវបានរក្សាសិទ្ធដោយ អ្នកនិពន្ធ ។ ក៏ប៉ុន្តែ ក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងខ្ញុំនឹង ទទួលបាននូវសិទ្ធធ្វើការថតចម្លង ចែកចាយ ផ្អើរជាសាធារណៈ បកប្រែ និងកែសម្រួលផ្សេងៗ បានទូទាំង ពិភពលោក ក្នុងកំឡុងពេលដែលបានព្រមព្រៀងមួយ។ យោងទៅតាមបទបញ្ញតិ្ត ក្នុងករណីដែល អ្នកនិពន្ធ ចង់ផ្តល់សិទ្ធនិពន្ធអោយអ្នកដទៃ ត្រូវមកសុំការអនុញ្ញតិពីក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងជាខ្ញុំមុនសិន ។
- **៤**. សារណាដែលត្រូវបានបកប្រែ កែសម្រួលដោយក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងខ្ញុំនឹងត្រូវបានរក្សាសិទ្ធគ្រប់យ៉ាងដោយ និង ក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងខ្ញុំ ។ មាត្រាទី២៤ស្តីពីច្បាប់រក្សាសិទ្ធរបស់ប្រទេសជប៉ុន និង ច្បាប់រក្សាសិទ្ធរបស់ប្រទេសផ្សេងៗ បើសិនជាគា្មនការយល់ព្រមពីក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងខ្ញុំតាមរយៈលាយលក្ខណ៍អកុររជាមុននោះ មិនត្រូវបានអនុវត្តិឡើយ ទេ គឺមិនអនុញ្ញតិអោយ អ្នកនិពន្ធ យកសារណាដែលបានកែសម្រួលរួចនៅក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងខ្ញុំយកទៅបោះពុម្ព នៅទស្សនាវដ្តីដទៃនោះទេ ។
- 🧶 អ្នកនិពន្ធ មិនអាចជំទាស់ទៅនឹងការបកប្រែ ឬការកែសម្រួលនៃសារណាដែលក្រុមហ៊ុនយើងបានធ្វើឡើយ ។
- ៦. អ្នកនិពន្ធត្រូវធានាថា សារណាដែលបានសរសេរ មិនស្ថិតនៅក្រោមការរក្សារសិទ្ធរបស់អ្នកដទៃ ក៏ដូចជាប៉ះពាល់ ដល់កិត្តិយស សិទ្ធិផាល់ខ្លួន ឯកជនភាព និងសិទ្ធិផ្សេងទៀតរបស់អ្នកដទៃឡើយ។ ក្រុមអ្នកស្រាវជ្រាវផ្នែក វេជ្ជសាស្ត្រត្រូវតែធ្វើតាមសេចក្តីប្រកាសរបស់ទីក្រុង Helsinki និងពិចារណាវិជាជីវិះប្រកបដោយក្រមសីលធម៍ ។ ការពិសោធន៍ទៅលើសត្វត្រូវធ្វើឡើងនៅក្នុងបែបបទមួយដែលផ្តល់ការយកចិត្តទុកដាក់ទៅលើការការពារសត្វ ។ ក្នុងករណីអត្ថបទដែលបានសរសេរមានជាប់ពាក់ព័ន្ធនឹងអត្ថប្រយោជន៍របស់បុគ្គល ឬ អង្គការ ឬ ក្រុមហ៊ុននោះ អ្នកនិពន្ធត្រូវសរសេរបញ្ចក់អំពីអត្ថប្រយោជន៍ ឬ ផលប៉ះពាល់ដែលអាចកើតមានទាំងនោះ ទៅក្នុងអត្ថបទដែល បានសរសេរផងដែរ ។
- *៧.* អ្នកនិពន្ធ អាចយកសារណាដែលបានប្រកាសរួចនាឯសិកា្តសិលាប្ឆូទស្សនាវដ្តីផ្សេងៗមកដាក់បាន ។ ក៏ប៉ុន្តែក្នុង ករណីចំនុចមួយចំនួនដែលបានសរសេរនៅក្នុងសារណាដែលបានដាក់ជួន មានអត្ថន័យដូចគា្នខាំ្លងទៅនឹងសារណា ដែលបានចេញផ្សាយរួចរាល់នៅក្នុងទស្សនាវដ្តីដទៃនោះ អ្នកនិពន្ធ ត្រូវពិនិត្យអោយច្បាស់ដោយជាល់ជាមួយ នឹងបទបញ្ញត្តិនៃការចុះផ្សាយក៏ដូចជាបទបញ្ជនៃការចូលរួមសិកា្ទសិលា ឬត្រូវធ្វើការទំនាក់ទំនងជាមុនទៅកាន់ មាស់ដើមនៃសារណាក្នុងករណីចាំបាច់ដើម្បីធ្វើការសុំអនុញ្ញាតិសម្រង់អត្ថបទ ក្នុងគោលបំណងជៀសវាងការរំលោភបំពាន លើក្រមសីលធម៌នៃការស្រាជ្រវ ។ លើសពីនេះ អ្នកនិពន្ធត្រូវសរសេរអោយបានច្បាស់ពីប្រភពដែលបានដកស្រង់ដូចជា ឈ្មោស្សេវៃភៅ ឈ្មោះអ្នកនិពន្ធ ថ្ងៃចេញផ្សាយ និងទំព័រជាដើមផងដែរ ។

- *៤.* ទស្សនាវដ្តីរបស់យើងខ្ញុំ មិនធ្វើការហាមប្រាម អ្នកនិពន្ធ ពីការយកសារណាទៅចេញផ្សាយនៅទស្សនាវដ្តីដទៃ ឡើយ ។ ក៏ប៉ុន្តែ យើងខ្ញុំសូមជម្រាបផងដែរថា សារណាដែលដាក់ជូនទស្សនាវដ្តីយើងខ្ញុំហើយ អាចនឹងមិនអាច ចុះផ្សាយម្តងទៀតនៅក្រុមហ៊ុនទស្សនាវដ្តីនោះទេ ។ ម្យ៉ាងវិញទៀត យើងក៏សូមបញ្ចាក់ផងដែរថា ក្នុងករណី អ្នកនិពន្ធយកសារណាមកដាក់ជួនយើងខ្ញុំ ដទៃ យើងខ្ញុំមិនទទួលខុសត្រូវឡើយ ។
- *៩.* ការជ្រើសរើសសារណា ធ្វើឡើងដោយការវាយតម្លៃពីគណៈកម្មាធិការរៀបចំការបោះឮម្ពុផ្សាយ ដោយមានការ ពិនិត្យឡើងវិញជាមុន ។
- 90. សារណាដែលបានដាក់ជូនហើយមិនអាចដកវិញបាននោះទេ ។
- 99. ការកែតម្រូវរបស់អ្នកនិពន្ធអាចធ្វើឡើងបានតែម្តងប៉ុណ្ណេះតាមកាលបរិច្ឆេទកំណត់ដែលបានស្នើ ។ អ្នកនិពន្ធ អាច កែតម្រូវបានក្នុងករណីបាត់ពាក្យ ឬ ខុសអកា្គវិរុទ្ធប៉ុណោ្ណះ ។ មិនត្រូវសរសេរបន្ថែមនោះទេ ។
- **១២.** ១) សារណាត្រូវសរសេរដោយប្រើកុំព្យូទ័រ ។ ២) ត្រូវប្រើខា្មត A៤ បញ្ឈរ និង មានតំលាតសមស្រប ។
- *១៣.* ទាំងអ្នកនិពន្ធ និង ក្រុមហ៊ុននឹងមិនត្រូវបានបង់ប្រាក់សម្រាប់ការបោះពុម្ភផ្សាយនៅក្នុងទស្សនាវិដ្តីនោះទេ ។
- 🤗 សូមយកសារណារបស់អ្នកមកដាក់ជូនតាមរយៈអាស័យដា្ឋនខាងក្រោម :

ធ្វើអោយសារណាដដែលនោះមិនអាចយកទៅផ្សាយក្នុងទស្សនាវដ្ដី

Reiseikai Media (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. #9GA, Street Keo Chenda, Village 3 Sangkat Chroy Chongva, Khan Chroy Chongva, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodiabodia E-mail: info@reiseikai-media.org

The Cambodian Journal of Nephrology

Provisional Editors: Hideki KawanishiJapanKazunari YoshidaJapanAkihiro YamashitaJapanToru HyodoJapanSamnang ChinCambodiaSovandy ChanCambodiaKenichi KokuboJapan

 Publisher
 : The Cambodian Journal of Nephrology is published by Reiseikai Media (Cambodia) Co.,Ltd.

 <Representative director, CEO> Haruki Wakai M.D.
 <Office address> Reiseikai Media (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

 #9GA, Street Keo Chenda, Village 3, Sangkat Chroy Chongva, Khan Chroy Chongva,
 Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodiabodi

 <Tel> 023-901-870 (+855-(0)23-901-870)
 <Fax> 023-901-857 (+855-(0)23-901-857)

 <Email> info@reiseikai-media.org
 <Website> https://www.reiseikai-media.org/index-e.html

 https://www.reiseikai-media.org/cambodia/index-e.html
 *All rights reserved.

Intercultural "media" for all people concerned in healthcare and for all children

Publication of books and magazines Planning, creation, and renewal of websites. Translation services between Khmer, English, and Japanese languages. Support in planning and organizing various academic meetings and training events. Import, export and sale of healthcare items.

#9GA, Street Keo Chenda, Village 3, Sangkat Chroy Chongva, Khan Chroy Chongva, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia http://www.reiseikai-media.org/index-e.html

